UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,

v.

INNOVIDA HOLDINGS, LLC, CLAUDIO OSORIO, AND CRAIG TOLL,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission alleges:

I. INTRODUCTION

1. The Commission brings this action to enjoin InnoVida Holdings, LLC, Claudio Osorio, and Craig Toll from violating the anti-fraud provisions of the federal securities laws.

2. From no later than March 2007 until at least March 2010, InnoVida, a purported manufacturer of hurricane and fire-proof housing materials; and Osorio, the Company's President, raised approximately \$16.8 million from at least five investors by offering and selling securities in the form of units and loan instruments in InnoVida.

3. Osorio was active in local and national politics as a fundraiser for political candidates. To add an air of legitimacy to InnoVida, Osorio recruited a high-profile board of directors for InnoVida that included a former governor of Florida. Osorio solicited investors through one-on-one conversations, sometimes during political fundraising events.

4. To lure investors, Toll, the Company's CFO, created financial statements showing InnoVida had more than \$35 million in cash and more than \$100 million in equity. Osorio told

at least one potential investor InnoVida was valued at \$50 million, and another the Company was valued at \$250 million. Osorio also told potential investors he was InnoVida's largest stakeholder and had invested tens of millions of his own money into the Company.

5. All of these statements were false. Toll's financial statements artificially inflated the Company's cash by nearly twentyfold. InnoVida was never valued at \$50 million, let alone \$250 million. And Osorio never invested tens of millions into the Company.

6. Osorio also enticed investors to increase their investments by guaranteeing a Middle Eastern sovereign wealth fund would purchase investors' shares for profits of approximately 900% by a date certain.

7. This claim was patently false. The Middle Eastern sovereign wealth fund investment was a ruse to solicit additional funds from investors.

8. Contrary to Osorio and InnoVida's representations to investors about how they would spend the money, Osorio misappropriated nearly half of investors' funds, or approximately \$8.1 million, to support his lavish lifestyle.

9. Through their conduct, InnoVida, Osorio, and Toll violated Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 ("Securities Act") [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)]; and Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act") [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b); 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5].

10. The Commission asks the Court to enter: (1) a permanent injunction restraining and enjoining the Defendants from violating the federal securities laws; (2) an order directing the Defendants to disgorge all ill-gotten gains, with prejudgment interest; (3) an order directing the Defendants to pay civil penalties; and (4) an order prohibiting Osorio and Toll from serving as officers and directors of a public company.

II. DEFENDANTS

11. InnoVida is a Florida company formed in March 2006 with its principal place of business in Miami, Florida. InnoVida was known as COEG, LLC from March 2006 until Osorio changed the name to InnoVida in April 2008. From March 2007 until March 2011, InnoVida was purportedly in the business of manufacturing building panels used to construct hurricane and fire-resistant houses and other structures. On March 1, 2011, a Florida state court, in a proceeding concerning an investor's claim against InnoVida and Osorio, appointed a Receiver to take over InnoVida's operations. On March 24, 2011, the Receiver filed a Chapter 11 bankruptcy petition on behalf of the Company in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Florida. On December 16, 2011, the bankruptcy was converted to a Chapter 7 bankruptcy proceeding, which remains pending.

12. Osorio, 54, is a resident of Aventura, Florida. He was a managing member of InnoVida from March 2006 until March 2011, and InnoVida's president, CEO, and a member of the Company's board of directors from no later than March 2007 until March 2011. Osorio is a former Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year Award winner.

13. Toll, 64, is a resident of Pembroke Pines, Florida. He is a certified public accountant licensed to practice in Florida since 1980. He was InnoVida's CFO from approximately December 2007 until March 2011.

III. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

14. The Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Sections 20(b) and 22(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 77t(b) and v(a)]; and Sections 21(d) and 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d) and 78aa].

15. The Court has personal jurisdiction over the Defendants, and venue is proper in the Southern District of Florida, because many of the Defendants' acts and transactions constituting violations of the Securities Act and Exchange Act occurred in Miami, Florida. In addition, InnoVida's principal place of business was in Miami, and Osorio and Toll reside in the Southern District of Florida.

16. In connection with the conduct alleged in this Complaint, the Defendants, directly and indirectly, singly or in concert with others, have made use of the means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, the means or instruments of transportation and communication in interstate commerce, and the mails.

IV. THE DEFENDANTS' FRAUDULENT OFFERING

A. InnoVida's Purported Business

17. InnoVida was created in March 2006 and continued doing business until approximately March 2011, when the Company entered bankruptcy.

18. While the Company operated, its website described the Company as one that "manufactures building solutions that bridge the gap between energy efficiency, affordability and high quality. Using its proprietary technology, InnoVida manufactures Fiber Composite Panels which are used to build residential, commercial, government, military, globally relevant structures without the use of cement, steel, or wood and with significant savings in cost to build, time to build and energy cost to operate."

19. The Company further described itself on its website as "a global corporation with current operations in the USA, Germany, Middle East, Africa, India, China, Haiti, and South America."

20. To add an air of legitimacy to InnoVida, Osorio recruited a high-profile board of directors that included a former Florida governor, a lobbyist, and a successful real estate developer.

21. Osorio managed all aspects of InnoVida's business and had direct contact with investors whom he used to fund his business.

B. The InnoVida Offering

22. From no later than March 2007 until at least March 2010, Osorio, directly and through InnoVida, raised money from investors to privately finance the Company's business.

23. Osorio solicited investors directly, through group presentations and one-on-one conversations.

24. For example, during a political fundraiser Osorio hosted at his home, Osorio touted InnoVida to a potential investor and invited him to visit InnoVida's factory in North Miami. Osorio later told this investor: the panels InnoVida manufactured passed Miami-Dade County hurricane code requirements; InnoVida had a contract with Miami-Dade County to build five homes; and InnoVida held patents on the process for manufacturing the panels. In September 2009, this investor, a lobbyist residing in Miami, invested \$312,000 in InnoVida.

25. Osorio, directly and through InnoVida, offered and sold InnoVida securities in at least three forms.

26. First, at least two investors executed subscription agreements to purchase units of InnoVida shares. In September 2009, the aforementioned Miami-based lobbyist executed a subscription agreement and invested \$312,000 for 1,250,000 shares of InnoVida stock at a price of 25 cents per share. This investor later contributed an additional \$3.7 million in exchange for shares. On August 28, 2009, a professional basketball player invested \$1 million in InnoVida in exchange for 5,128,205 Class A shares at a price of 19.5 cents per share.

27. Second, at least one investor executed a promissory note. Specifically, on February 12 and November 2, 2009, an investor loaned InnoVida a total of \$3.75 million and

executed a three-year promissory note at an 8% annual interest rate. On October 30, 2009, the investor executed an "Amended and Restated Secured Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement," pursuant to which the investor agreed "the Securities to be acquired by the Purchaser will be acquired for investment for the Purchaser's own account."

28. Third, Osorio sold at least two investors a portion of his stake in InnoVida. For example, in five transactions from March 20 to May 14, 2007, Osorio sold 30% of InnoVida's common stock to an investor for \$8 million. In September 2009, Osorio sold an investor approximately 1.9 million Class A shares in exchange for \$100,000.

29. All told, Osorio raised at least \$16.8 million from at least five investors. Osorio commingled the investors' funds in various United States and foreign bank accounts he controlled.

C. Misrepresentations And Omissions In The InnoVida Offering

30. In connection with soliciting investments in InnoVida, Osorio and Toll, directly and through InnoVida, made material misrepresentations and omissions regarding InnoVida's financial condition. In addition, Osorio, directly and through InnoVida, made misrepresentations concerning: (1) InnoVida's share prices; (2) his personal investment in the Company; (3) a buyout agreement; and (4) the use of investor funds.

1. Osorio And Toll Made False Statements About InnoVida's Financial Condition

31. From no later than April 2009 until at least January 2010, Toll created baseless *pro forma* financial statements falsely portraying InnoVida as a cash-rich company.

32. According to the financial statements, InnoVida's cash and cash equivalents ranged from \$35 million to \$39 million.

33. For example, Toll drafted a *pro forma* financial statement for March 31, 2009 that stated InnoVida had more than \$35 million in cash and cash equivalents, and equity of more than

\$100 million. He also prepared a *pro forma* financial statement for December 31, 2009 that listed more than \$39 million in cash and cash equivalents, and \$122 million of equity.

34. These representations were false. The Company's bank accounts held less than \$185,000 on March 31, 2009, and less than \$2 million on December 31, 2009.

35. Toll failed to review all of InnoVida's bank account statements when he drafted the financial statements. Instead, he accepted Osorio's representations that the Company had these assets in the one account to which he did not have access.

36. Toll was reckless in relying on Osorio's representations. The accounts Toll did have access to did not show substantial assets, and Toll did not obtain or review the records for the account where Osorio claimed the assets were maintained.

37. Osorio and Toll used the false financial statements to lure investors.

38. Osorio had signatory authority over the Company's bank accounts and knew the information in the Company's financial statements was false.

39. Osorio used InnoVida's financial statements to convince investors the Company had substantial cash on hand and substantial shareholder equity. The financial statements Toll created were a central feature of Osorio's sales pitches, and Osorio frequently presented the statements to potential investors.

40. Toll also used the financial statements to solicit additional contributions from investors.

41. For example, during a September 2009 Board of Directors meeting, Toll discussed the March 31, 2009 financial statement with one investor and a potential investor in attendance. The investor subsequently increased his investment, and the potential investor made

his initial investment, based in part on Toll's representations about the Company's financial condition.

42. Toll also discussed the financial statements during one-on-one conversations with investors. For example, in late January or early February 2010, Toll told an investor that while the December 31, 2009 financial statement stated it was "*pro forma*," the numbers, showing approximately \$39 million in cash, were accurate. The investor then increased his investment in InnoVida.

43. Toll had no basis for making this representation because there were no account statements reflecting these assets.

2. Bogus Share Prices

44. From August to the end of September 2009, Osorio offered ownership interests to at least two investors based on false valuations.

45. On September 9, 2009, InnoVida potential investors attended an InnoVida board meeting where Osorio falsely claimed the Company was valued at \$250 million.

46. Osorio had no basis for making this claim, which was patently false. Osorio's most recent valuation, in December 2008, was for \$20 million – far less than the \$250 million Osorio claimed.

47. One week later, Osorio changed the valuation again. On September 16, 2009, Osorio offered an investor an ownership interest in InnoVida based on his claim the Company was worth \$50 million. The investor purchased \$100,000 of Osorio's stake in the Company for five cents per share.

48. When Osorio solicited this investor, he had no basis for claiming InnoVida was valued at \$50 million. He knew at the time the Company had less than \$40,000 in cash or cash equivalent assets.

49. Two weeks later, on September 30, 2009, Osorio changed the valuation yet again. This time, he told a potential investor he was selling shares to other investors for 25 cents per share. This was false. In truth, Osorio was selling shares to investors for significantly less than that, at 5 cents per share.

50. On September 30, 2009, the investor invested \$312,000 at 25 cents per share.

3. Osorio's Claimed Investment

51. Osorio told at least one investor he had invested tens of millions of his own money into InnoVida.

52. The investor then invested \$312,000 in September 2009.

53. However, Osorio never loaned or invested tens of millions into the Company. Instead, this was a ruse to induce investors to invest in InnoVida.

4. The Sovereign Wealth Buyout

54. Osorio concocted another elaborate ruse to induce one investor to add \$3.7 million to his \$312,000 InnoVida investment.

55. In early 2010, Osorio began mentioning to an investor he was in negotiations with a Middle East sovereign wealth fund to purchase a portion of InnoVida.

56. Osorio told the investor that, according to the terms of the supposed \$500 million deal, a portion of that money would be used to buy units from existing shareholders at \$2.50 per share.

57. In early 2010, the investor told Osorio he appreciated the opportunity, but that his liquidity was limited.

58. Over the next several weeks, Osorio continued to pressure the investor to act and claimed the deal was imminent.

59. Osorio went so far as to create a document showing the investor how much he would make once the sovereign wealth deal closed and was funded.

60. Based on Osorio's representations, the investor was able to raise approximately \$700,000 in February 2010, and one month later borrowed \$3 million from a close friend.

61. However, there was no sovereign wealth buyout deal. It was yet another scheme Osorio used to solicit additional funds from investors.

5. Osorio Misused Investors' Funds

62. Osorio raised approximately \$16.8 million from five investors. The investors understood Osorio would use their money to grow InnoVida. For example, in October 2009, Osorio, on behalf of InnoVida, executed a Secured Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement with an investor and represented InnoVida would use the investors' proceeds for the "ongoing development plans of the Company."

63. Osorio never told investors he would use at least \$8.1 million of the \$16.8 million on himself.

64. Osorio used investors' money to pay the mortgage on his multi-million dollar mansion on Star Island in Miami Beach, Florida, the mortgage on his Colorado mountain retreat, the loan on his Maserati, country club dues, and to otherwise fund his lavish lifestyle.

Case 1:12-cv-24326-JAL Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 12/07/2012 Page 11 of 15

V. CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

<u>COUNT I</u>

Fraud In Violation of Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 of the Exchange Act Against All Defendants

65. The Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 64 of this Complaint as if fully restated herein.

66. InnoVida and Osorio, from no later than March 2007 until at least March 2010, and Toll, from no later than April 2009 until at least March 2010, directly or indirectly, by use of the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, and of the mails in connection with the purchase or sale of securities, knowingly, willfully or recklessly: (a) employed devices, schemes or artifices to defraud; (b) made untrue statements of material facts and omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and/or (c) engaged in acts, practices and courses of business which have operated, are now operating and will operate as a fraud upon the purchasers of such securities.

67. By reason of the foregoing, the Defendants, directly or indirectly violated and, unless enjoined, are reasonably likely to continue to violate Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Exchange Act Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5].

COUNT II

Fraud in the Offer or Sale of Securities in Violation of Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act Against All Defendants

68. The Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 64 of this Complaint as if fully restated herein.

69. InnoVida and Osorio, from no later than March 2007 until at least March 2010, and Toll, from no later than April 2009 until at least March 2010, directly and indirectly, by use of the means or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce and by use of the mails, in the offer or sale of securities, as described in this Complaint, knowingly, willfully or recklessly employed devices, schemes or artifices to defraud.

70. By reason of the foregoing, the Defendants, directly and indirectly, violated and, unless enjoined, are reasonably likely to continue to violate Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)(1)].

COUNT III

Fraud in the Offer or Sale of Securities in Violation of Sections 17(a)(2) and (a)(3) of the Securities Act Against All Defendants

71. The Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 64 of its Complaint as if fully restated herein.

72. InnoVida and Osorio, from no later than March 2007 until at least March 2010, and Toll, from no later than April 2009 until at least March 2010, directly or indirectly, in the offer or sale of securities, by the use of means or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce, or of the mails: (a) obtained money or property by means of untrue statements of material fact or by omitting to state material facts necessary in order to make the

statements made, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and/or (b) engaged in transactions, practices or courses of business which operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchasers of such securities.

73. By reason of the foregoing, the Defendants, directly and indirectly, violated and, unless enjoined, are reasonably likely to continue to violate Sections 17(a)(2) and (a)(3) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 77q(a)(2) and (a)(3)].

VI. <u>RELIEF REQUESTED</u>

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court:

I.

Declaratory Relief

Declare, determine, and find that the Defendants have committed the violations of the federal securities laws alleged in this Complaint.

II.

Permanent Injunctive Relief

Issue Permanent Injunctions, enjoining Defendants InnoVida, Osorio, Toll, their agents, servants, employees, attorneys, representatives, and all persons in active concert or participation with them, and each of them, from directly or indirectly violating: (1) Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)(1)]; (2) Sections 17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)(2) and (a)(3)]; and (3) Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b) and 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5].

III.

Disgorgement

Issue an Order directing the Defendants to disgorge all ill-gotten gains, including prejudgment interest, resulting from the acts or courses of conduct alleged in this Complaint.

IV.

Penalties

Issue an Order directing Defendants InnoVida, Osorio and Toll to pay civil money penalties pursuant to Section 20(d) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)], and Section 21(d) of the Exchange Act, [15 U.S.C. § 78(d)].

v.

Officer And Director Bar

Issue an order pursuant to Section 20(e) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(e)] and Section 21(d)(2) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)(2)] barring Defendants Osorio and Toll from serving as an officer or director of a public company.

VI.

Further Relief

Grant such other and further relief as may be necessary and appropriate.

VII.

Retention of Jurisdiction

Further, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court retain jurisdiction over this action in order to implement and carry out the terms of all orders and decrees that it may enter, or to entertain any suitable application or motion by the Commission for additional relief within the jurisdiction of this Court.

Case 1:12-cv-24326-JAL Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 12/07/2012 Page 15 of 15

December **7**, 2012

Respectfully submitted By: Amie Riggle Berlin, Esq. Senior Trial Counsel Florida Bar No. 630020 Direct Dial: (305) 982-6322 E-mail: berlina@sec.gov

Attorney for Plaintiff SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 801 Brickell Avenue, Suite 1800 Miami, Florida 33131 Telephone: (305) 982-6300 Facsimile: (305) 536-4154

Case 1:12-cv-24326-JAL Document 1-1 Entered on FLSD Docket 12/07/2012 Page 1 of 1 *JS 44 (Rev. 2/08) CIVIL COVER SHEET

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating NOTICE: Attorneys MUST Indicate All Re-filed Cases Below. the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON THE REVERSE OF THE FORM.) DEFENDANTS I. (a) PLAINTIFFS SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION INNOVIDA HOLDINGS, LLC, CLAUDIO ORSORIO, and CRAIG TOLL ÷ Miami-Dade County of Residence of First Listed Defendant (b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES) (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY) NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT (c) Attorney's (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number) LAND INVOLVED Amie Riggle Berlin, Securities and Exchange Commision, 801 Brickell Attorneys (If Known) Avenue, Suite 1800, Miami, FL 33131, 305-982-6322 (d) Check County Where Action Arose: 5 MIAMI-DADE □ MONROE □ BROWARD □ PALM BEACH □ MARTIN □ ST. LUCIE □ INDIAN RIVER □ OKEECHOBEE HIGHLANDS III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES(Place an "X" in One Box for Plaintiff **II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION** (Place an "X" in One Box Only) and One Box for Defendant) (For Diversity Cases Only) PTF DEF PTF DEF 73 Federal Ouestion /7 1 U.S. Government Citizen of This State **D** 1 Incorporated or Principal Place п 4 0.4 (U.S. Government Not a Party) 1 Plaintiff of Business In This State 3 5 Citizen of Another State 2 **J** 2 Incorporated and Principal Place 5 5 7 2 U.S. Government 74 Diversity of Business In Another State Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III) 7 6 Citizen or Subject of a п 3 □ 3 Foreign Nation п 6 Foreign Country NATURE OF SUIT (Place an "X" in One Box Only) IV. FORFEITURE/PENALTY OTHER STATUTES TORTS BANKRUPTCY CONTRACT 400 State Reapportionment 610 Agriculture 3 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY **J** 110 Insurance J 423 Withdrawal 620 Other Food & Drug 7 120 Marine 310 Airplane 362 Personal Injury -Π. 410 Antitrust 28 USC 157 430 Banks and Banking □ 130 Miller Act 3 315 Airplane Product Med Malpractice 1 625 Drug Related Seizure of Property 21 USC 881 450 Commerce □ 140 Negotiable Instrument Liability 365 Personal Injury -630 Liquor Laws PROPERTY RIGHTS 460 Deportation □ 150 Recovery of Overpayment 7 320 Assault, Libel & Product Liability □ 820 Copyrights -640 R.R. & Truck 470 Racketeer Influenced and & Enforcement of Judgment Slander 368 Ashestos Personal C 830 Patent Corrupt Organizations ⊐ 330 Federal Employers' Injury Product а 650 Airline Rees. □ 151 Medicare Act □ 840 Trademark 480 Consumer Credit □ 152 Recovery of Defaulted Liability Liability а 660 Occupational 7 340 Marine PERSONAL PROPERTY 490 Cable/Sat TV Student Loans Safety/Health (Excl. Veterans) □ 345 Marine Product 370 Other Fraud 690 Other 810 Selective Service SOCIAL SECURITY □ 153 Recovery of Overpayment Liability 371 Truth in Lending LABOR × 850 Securities/Commodities/ of Veteran's Benefits 3 350 Motor Vehicle -380 Other Personal 710 Fair Labor Standards 861 HIA (1395m) Exchange □ 160 Stockholders' Suits 355 Motor Vehicle Property Damage 3 862 Black Lung (923) 875 Customer Challenge Act □ 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) 12 USC 3410 Product Liability 385 Property Damage п 720 Labor/Mgmt, Relations 190 Other Contract 3 864 SSID Title XVI **J** 195 Contract Product Liability 3 360 Other Personal Product Liability 7 730 Labor/Mgmt.Reporting 890 Other Statutory Actions & Disclosure Act □ 865 RSI (405(g)) -891 Agricultural Acts 196 Franchise Injury CIVIL RIGHTS REAL PROPERTY PRISONER PETITIONS 740 Railway Labor Act FEDERAL TAX SUITS 892 Economic Stabilization Act D. O 790 Other Labor Litigation 3 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff 893 Environmental Matters 7 441 Voting 510 Motions to Vacate J 210 Land Condemnation □ 442 Employment Sentence Ð 791 Empl. Ret. Inc. Securit or Defendant) O 894 Energy Allocation Act □ 220 Foreclosure J 443 Housing/ Accommodations 7 871 IRS Third Party 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment Habeas Corpus: Act in the 895 Freedom of Information Act 26 USC 7609 240 Torts to Land 530 General J 444 Welfare 900 Appeal of Fee Determination 245 Tort Product Liability 535 Death Penalty IMMIGRATION D 462 Naturalization 445 Amer. w/Disabilities Under Equal Access to Justice D Employment 3 290 All Other Real Property ٦ 540 Mandamus & Other п Application 463 Habeas Corpus-Alien 446 Amer. w/Disabilities 550 Civil Rights Detaince Other 465 Other Immigration 950 Constitutionality of State Ξī. J 440 Other Civil Rights 555 Prison Condition Statutes Actions Appeal to District V. ORIGIN (Place an "X" in One Box Only) Transferred from Judge from 1 Original Removed from Re-filed-Reinstated or 🗇 5 Multidistrict 4 77 **7**2 another district Magistrate (see VI below) Proceeding State Court Reopened Litigation (specify) Judgment a) Re-filed Case D YES D NO b) Related Cases YES NO VI. RELATED/RE-FILED (See instructions CASE(S). second page) JUDGE DOCKET NUMBER Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing and Write a Brief Statement of Cause (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity): VII. CAUSE OF ACTION 15 USC \$779(a), 15 USC \$781(b) and 17 CFR \$240.10b-5 Securities Fraud, Misrepresentation and Omissions days estimated (for both sides to try entire case) LENGTH OF TRIAL via VIII. REQUESTED IN CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION DEMAND \$ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint: UNDER F.R.C.P. 23 COMPLAINT: JURY DEMAND: V No □ Yes **ABOVE INFORMATION IS TRUE & CORRECT TO** SIGNATURE OF TTORNEY OF BECORD DATE THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE d FOR OFFICE USE ONLY AMOUNT **RECEIPT** # 1FP

Case 1:12-cv-24326-JAL Document 1-2 Entered on FLSD Docket 12/07/2012 Page 1 of 2

AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Southern District of Florida

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

)) *Plaintiff(s)*) v.) INNOVIDA HOLDINGS, LLC, CLAUDIO SORIO, and CRAIG TOLL

Defendant(s)

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant's name and address) Soneet Kapila as Chapter 7 Trustee for InnoVida Holdings LLC c/o Michael Budwick, Esq. Meland Russin & Budwick, PA 200 S. Biscayne Blvd., Suite 3000 Miami, FL 33131

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff's attorney, whose name and address are: Amie Riggle Berlin, Esq.

Securities and Exchange Commission 801 Brickell Avenue, Suite 1800 Miami, FL 33131

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk

)

Civil Action No.

AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE

(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

	This summons for (nan	ne of individual and title, if any)				
was re	ceived by me on (date)					
	lual at (place)					
			on (date)	; or		
	□ I left the summons at the individual's residence or usual place of abode with (<i>name</i>)					
	, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there, on (<i>date</i>), and mailed a copy to the individual's last known address; or					
	□ I served the summo designated by law to a	, who is				
			on (date)	; or		
	\square I returned the summ	nons unexecuted because		; or		
	• Other (<i>specify</i>):					
	My fees are \$	for travel and \$	for services, for a total of \$	0.00 .		
	I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.					
Date:						
			Server's signature			
			Printed name and title			

Server's address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

Case 1:12-cv-24326-JAL Document 1-3 Entered on FLSD Docket 12/07/2012 Page 1 of 2

AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Southern District of Florida

)

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

<i>Plaintiff(s)</i>	
V.	
INNOVIDA HOLDINGS, LLC, CLAUDIO OSORIO and CRAIG TOLL	,
Defendant(s)	

Civil Action No.

Defendant(s)

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant's name and address) Claudio Osorio 3201 NE 183rd Street, Apt. 508 Aventura, FL 33160

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff's attorney, whose name and address are: Amie Riggle Berlin, Esq.

Securities and Exchange Commission 801 Brickell Avenue, Suite 1800 Miami, FL 33131

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk

Case 1:12-cv-24326-JAL Document 1-3 Entered on FLSD Docket 12/07/2012 Page 2 of 2

AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE

(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

	This summons for (nam	ne of individual and title, if any)					
was re	ceived by me on (date)	·					
	□ I personally served	the summons on the individua	l at (place)				
		on (date) ; (
	□ I left the summons at the individual's residence or usual place of abode with (<i>name</i>)						
		, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there					
	on (date)						
	\Box I served the summa	ons on (name of individual)		, who is			
	designated by law to a	designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)					
			on (date)	; or			
	□ I returned the summ	; or					
	Other (<i>specify</i>):						
	My fees are \$	for travel and \$	for services, for a total of \$	0.00 .			
	I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.						
Date:							
			Server's signature				
			Printed name and title				

Server's address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

Case 1:12-cv-24326-JAL Document 1-4 Entered on FLSD Docket 12/07/2012 Page 1 of 2

AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Southern District of Florida

)

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Plaintiff(s)	
V.	
INNOVIDA HOLDINGS, LLC, CLAUDIO OSORIO and CRAIG TOLL	,
Defendant(s)	

Civil Action No.

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant's name and address) Craig Toll 1224 N.W. 140th Terr. Pembroke Pines, FL 33028

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff's attorney, whose name and address are: Amie Riggle Berlin, Esq.

Securities and Exchange Commission 801 Brickell Avenue, Suite 1800 Miami, FL 33131

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk

Case 1:12-cv-24326-JAL Document 1-4 Entered on FLSD Docket 12/07/2012 Page 2 of 2

AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE

(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

	This summons for (nam	ne of individual and title, if any)					
was re	ceived by me on (date)	·					
	□ I personally served	the summons on the individua	l at (place)				
		on (date) ; (
	□ I left the summons at the individual's residence or usual place of abode with (<i>name</i>)						
		, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there					
	on (date)						
	\Box I served the summa	ons on (name of individual)		, who is			
	designated by law to a	designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)					
			on (date)	; or			
	□ I returned the summ	; or					
	Other (<i>specify</i>):						
	My fees are \$	for travel and \$	for services, for a total of \$	0.00 .			
	I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.						
Date:							
			Server's signature				
			Printed name and title				

Server's address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc: